
 

Community 
Development District 

 

 

November 3, 2022 
 

Regular Meeting 
Agenda 



   
Community Development District 

 
OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT MANAGER 

250 International Parkway, Suite 208●Lake Mary, Florida 32746 
Phone: (321) 263-0132● Toll-free: (877) 276-0889 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

ATTENDEES: 

Meetings/Workshops are now held in person. During public comments, please state your name and 
address.  

Residents may view via Zoom using the information below: 
 
Link: 
https://vestapropertyservices.zoom.us/j/7055714830?pwd=dUFTN091cjVHZzluYUN0blEwUUYydz09 
 
Meeting ID: 7055714830 

District Website: https://www.grandhavencdd.org/ 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Grand Haven Community Development District 

Dear Board Members: 

The Board of Supervisors of the Grand Haven Community Development District will hold a 
Regular Meeting on Thursday, November 3, 2022, at 9:00 a.m., in the Grand Haven Room, at the 
Grand Haven Village Center, located at 2001 Waterside Parkway, Palm Coast, Florida 32137. 

I. Call to Order/ Roll Call  
II. Pledge of Allegiance  
III. Audience Comments – (For non-agenda items-limited up to 3 

minutes per individual) 
 

IV. Staff Reports  
A. Amenity Manager: John Lucansky Exhibit 1 
B. District Engineer: David Sowell  
C. Operations Manager: Barry Kloptosky  

1. Presentation of Capital Project Plan Tracker Exhibit 2 
2. Monthly Report Exhibit 3 

D. District Counsel: Scott Clark  
1. Meeting List Exhibit 4 
2. Litigation  Exhibit 5 

E. District Manager: David McInnes  
1. Meeting Matrix Exhibit 6 
2. Action Item Report Exhibit 7 

  

https://vestapropertyservices.zoom.us/j/7055714830?pwd=dUFTN091cjVHZzluYUN0blEwUUYydz09
https://www.grandhavencdd.org/


   
Community Development District 

 
OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT MANAGER 

250 International Parkway, Suite 208●Lake Mary, Florida 32746 
Phone: (321) 263-0132● Toll-free: (877) 276-0889 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

V. Consent Agenda Items  
A. Consideration for Approval – The Minutes of the Board of 

Supervisors Workshop Meeting Held October 6, 2022 
Exhibit 8 

B. Consideration for Approval – The Minutes of the Board of 
Supervisors Regular Meeting Held October 20, 2022 

Exhibit 9 

VI. Business Items  
VII. Discussion Items  

A. Review of Possible Ways to Reduce the District’s Legal Costs Exhibit 10 
B. Preliminary Review of Resident Survey Results – To Be 

Distributed 
 

VIII. Supervisors Requests  
IX. Action Item Summary  
X. Next Meeting Quorum Check: December 1st, 9:00 AM 

 

John Polizzi  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

Dr. Merrill Stass-Isern  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

Kevin Foley  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

Michael Flanagan  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

Chip Howden  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

 

XI. Adjournment  

Should you have any questions regarding the agenda, please email me at dmcinnes@dpfgmc.com.  
Sincerely, 

David McInnes 
David McInnes 
District 
Manager 

mailto:dmcinnes@dpfgmc.com


  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 



1 
 

      

Monthly Amenity Update 

Date of report: 10-26-2022                                           Submitted by John Lucansky 

 
Supervisors,  
 
We are expecting a busy next couple months at the amenity centers.  The snowbirds are 
coming back which will increase activities especially tennis, pickleball, swimming, and croquet. 
 
We continue to work closely with the Grand Haven Family Fund, CERT, and Grand Haven 
Women’s club promoting their events that benefit the whole community. 
 
I’m working closely with Barry to come up with a suitable policy for locker usage. 
 
New facilitator matching shirts and hats (Grand Haven embroidered logo) were purchased to 
bring a more uniformed look to Grand Haven. 
 
 
 
 If you have any questions, feel free to give me a call. 
John 
 
 
 
Upcoming Amenity Events 
 
November: 
Arts and crafts festival         11/12 9am-1pm 
Karaoke Night                        11/12   5-9pm 
 
December: 
Tree lighting and FPC choir      12/13    6:30pm 
New Years Eve party                  12/31   8:30-12:30 
 
 
 

Return to Agenda



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 2 



Line Type Description Location 
 Budgeted

Cost 

Approved

Cost 

 Additional 

Change $ (+/-) 

Invoiced

Amount 
Comments/Notes

1 C Concrete Replacement Community Wide            50,000  - 

2 C Firewise Projects Community Wide            30,000  - 

3 E Camera and DVR Replacement Community Wide            10,000  - 

4 E Gate & Gate Operator - Replacement Community Wide            10,000  - 

5 E Concrete Curb and Gutter Replacement Community Wide          100,000  - 

6 E Road Repairs Community Wide            30,000  - 

7 LTCP 
Roadway: River Park, Point, Landing, Front, Village 

View

River Park, Point, Landing, 

Front, Village View
         218,545  - 

8 LTCP 
Pavers, Interlocking - Front St North Access 

(Esplanade)
Front St.            10,927  - 

9 LTCP 
 Pavers, Interlocking - Front St South Access 

(Esplanade)
Front St.            10,927  - 

10 LTCP Pavers, Interlocking - Front Street Park Front St.            10,927  - 

11 LTCP Pavers, Interlocking - Front Street Village Entry Front St.              4,482  - 

12 LTCP 
Finish, Carpet - Clubhouse ((CAC)) Office/Conference 

rooms
Creekside              6,556  - 

13 LTCP 
Replace Outdoor Tile Floors, Replace with Non-Skid - 

Clubhouse ((VC)) Gym
Village Center            27,318  - 

14 LTCP 
Refurbishment Allowance - Monument and Mailbox 

Creekside
Creekside              8,195  - 

15 LTCP 
Refurbishment Allowance - Monument and Mailbox 

East Lake
Eastlake              8,195  - 

16 LTCP Vehicle Traffic, Speed Control Improvements Community Wide            50,000  - 

17 LTCP Landscape Enhancements-Annual Reinvestment Community Wide            54,636  - 

18 LTCP Dog Park Improvement Project Wild Oaks            21,855  - 

19 RES Paint Exterior and Waterproof - Clubhouse (CAC) Creekside              8,742  - 

20 RES Paint Exterior and Waterproof - Tiki Bar (CAC) Creekside              2,394  - 

21 RES Drinking Fountain, Outdoor - Village Center Amenities Village Center              3,000  - 

22 RES Pool Equipment, Heat Pump (CAC) (4 units) Creekside            49,173         24,044          (25,129)            24,044 
Complete. 4 Units installed at 

Creekside.

23 RES Street Signs and Poles, Replacement Community Wide              5,000  - 

24 RES Tennis Court Windscreen, 10' - (VC) Courts 1-7 Village Center            14,853  - 

25 RES Furniture, Outdoor - Pool Deck (VC) Village Center            27,318  - 

26 RES Light Pole & Fixture - Replacement (estimated 5 poles) Community Wide            30,000  - 

27 Aerator Installations at Pond 24 & Pond 11 Pond 24 & Pond 11         40,000            40,000 Contracts fully executed.

28
Total Capital Projects for FY 

2022
         803,043         64,044            14,871            24,044 

29

30

31

32
Total Carryover Projects from 

prior year
                      -                    -                    -                         - 

33 GRAND HAVEN Total          803,043         64,044      14,871.00            24,044 

Type 

C Critical 

E Essential 

R Request 

RES Reserve Study 

Budgeted cost This amount is adopted at the public hearing, Board must approve projects 

Approved cost This amount is a refined/actual number based upon either estimates or proposals 

This could involve a contingency amount, usually a NTE amount. 

Change $ (+/-) This is an amount above or below the approved amount.  Sometimes referred to as 

a change order amount.

Invoiced Amount This is the actual invoiced amount and should match the Approve/Change amount

                                            FY2021/2022 Carryover Projects 

GRAND HAVEN 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

FY2022/2023 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN PROJECT TRACKER 

10/26/2022

Return to Agenda



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 3 



 
 

Barry Kloptosky • Operations Manager 
Grand Haven CDD 
2 N. Village Pkwy 

Palm Coast FL. 32137 
P: 386-447-1888 • F: 386-447-1131 

Operations Manager’s Report – November 3rd, 2022 

 

o CROSSWALK SAFETY PROJECT 

 The curb, gutter, and sidewalk concrete work has been completed at the Creekside and 

Marlin Drive as well as the Village Center intersections. 

 Staff is preparing to begin the installation of the stop sign poles. 

 Detectable surfaces installed. 10/26/2022 

 Crosswalk striping in progress. 10/26/2022 

 

o SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT PLAN 

 Proposals have been signed. We are currently waiting for the new contractor to provide 

a scheduled start date. 

 Sidewalk replacement has started on Waterside Parkway. 10/26/2022 

 Waterside Parkway Sidewalks are partially completed. 10/26/2022 

 Currently waiting for proposals from a new contractor to complete the remaining 

Waterside Parkway sidewalks. 10/26/2022 

 

o CONSTRUCTION OF NEW CROQUET COURTS AT CREEKSIDE 

 Courts complete and open for resident use. 

 Original 3 canopies installed.  

 Final inspections complete. 

 Remaining two canopies approved by the Board. 

 Proposals signed and deposit received. 

 Permit released. 10/26/2022 

 Two canopies in production. 10/26/2022 

Return to Agenda



 
 

Barry Kloptosky • Operations Manager 
Grand Haven CDD 
2 N. Village Pkwy 

Palm Coast FL. 32137 
P: 386-447-1888 • F: 386-447-1131 

o CURB AND GUTTER REPAIRS 

 The previous list of repairs has been completed. 

 The proposal has been received for the curb, gutter, and asphalt repairs on Waterside 

parkway from the Village Center to the South exit. 10/26/2022 

 

o PHASE II & PHASE III VILLAGE CENTER BATHROOM RENOVATIONS 

 Project has been completed with the exception of the 4 interior doors. 

 4 back-ordered interior doors did not interfere with the completion of the Village Center 

renovation project. 

 Village Center men’s and ladies’ bathrooms are open for resident use. 

 We are still waiting for certain punch list items and the bathrooms will be periodically 

closed to install these items once they are delivered. 

 Punch list items are partially complete. 10/26/2022 

 

o POND AERATION INSTALLATIONS 

 Installation of power source to the aeration equipment for Pond 37 is complete. 

Currently waiting for FPL to install a meter.  

 Additional proposals for aeration installation on Pond 24 and Pond 11 were received. 

 Contracts fully executed for aeration installations on Pond 24 and Pond 11. 10/26/2022 

 

o POND 43 IN WILD OAKS -SUBMERGED AQUATIC VEGETATION UPDATE 

 One proposal was received for vegetation harvesting. 10/26/2022 

 Seeking proposals from other contractors for harvesting and pond care maintenance. 

10/26/2022 

Return to Agenda



 
 

Barry Kloptosky • Operations Manager 
Grand Haven CDD 
2 N. Village Pkwy 

Palm Coast FL. 32137 
P: 386-447-1888 • F: 386-447-1131 

o CDD OFFICE NETWORK/SECURITY UPGRADES 

 The new operating software has been fully implemented in the guard house. The 

transition of the gate equipment is complete, and testing is in progress. 

 Guard training has been completed for all new modules.  

 The modem for the caller ID module has been installed. 10/6/2022 

 The auto attendant module is active and will be implemented when the resident web 

portal is ready for resident use. 

 The email notification module is active and will be implemented when the resident web 

portal is ready for resident use. 

 The resident web portal is active. Modifications are in progress and are estimated to be 

completed in the last week of October.  

 

o ASPHALT REPAIRS AROUND MANHOLE COVERS 

 6 locations in Wild Oaks and 2 locations on Osprey Circle are complete. 

 An additional location in Wild Oaks has been identified and repaired. 

 Other areas are being evaluated. 

 One proposal was received. Waiting for proposals for other areas. 10/26/2022 

 

o STREETLIGHT ASSESSMENT 

 Currently 20 streetlights need to be replaced.  

 Lights needing to be cleaned and painted: 268 

 Lights needing new globes: 14 

 Lights needing part replacement: 17 

 

Return to Agenda



 
 

Barry Kloptosky • Operations Manager 
Grand Haven CDD 
2 N. Village Pkwy 

Palm Coast FL. 32137 
P: 386-447-1888 • F: 386-447-1131 

o POND DRAINAGE ASSESSMENT 

 The District Engineer was onsite and completed an assessment of pond drainage in areas 

of resident concern.  

 The District Engineer presented his report to the Board at the 10/20/2022 Board Meeting. 

10/26/2022 

 

o HURRICANE IAN STORM DAMAGE REPAIR AND CLEANUP 

 Damage to mailboxes and mailbox surrounds has been repaired by staff. 

 Damaged ceiling fans at the amenity centers have been replaced by staff. 

 Damaged sections of fence at the new croquet courts will be replaced by staff. Fencing 

materials have been ordered.  

 Parts to repair the damage done to the trash enclosures at Creekside and the Village 

Center have been ordered and delivered and enclosure doors will be repaired by staff. 

 CDD debris removal contractor began debris removal on Monday, October 3rd,2022. For 

safety reasons, they began removing tree limbs along Waterside Parkway and main 

roadways.  

 Street and gutter debris removal began on Wednesday, October 5th, 2022. 

 The road and gutter debris removal was completed on October 19th, 2022. 10/26/2022 

 

o CREEKSIDE POOL HEAT PUMP REPLACEMENT 

 4 new units installed at Creekside. 10/26/2022 

 The budgeted amount was $49,173. The actual cost was $24,044. The cost savings is 

$25,129. 10/26/2022 

Return to Agenda



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 4 



Return to Agenda



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 5 



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



Return to Agenda



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 6 



GRAND HAVEN MEETING AGENDA MATRIX 
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

N
ovem

ber 2022 

Regular 
Meeting: 

11/3 

Staff Reports 
• District Engineer 
• District Counsel 
• District Manager 
 

Consent Agenda Items 
• Meeting Minutes 

o 10/1/2022 Workshop 
o 10/15/2022 Regular Meeting 

 
Discussion: 

• Preliminary review of resident survey results 
• Review of possible ways to reduce the District’s 

legal costs 
 

Business Items: 
 

 
 

 

Return to Agenda



GRAND HAVEN MEETING AGENDA MATRIX 
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D
ecem

ber 2022 

Regular 
Meeting: 

12/1 

Swearing in of Supervisors 
 
Staff Reports 

• District Engineer 
• District Counsel 
• District Manager 
 

Consent Agenda Items 
• Meeting Minutes 

o 11/3/2022 Regular Meeting 
• Unaudited Financials (October 2022) 

 
Discussion: 

• Board’s role and Supervisor’s Code of Conduct 
• Continued review of resident survey results 
• Supervisor Flanagan’s website suggestions—

tentative date 
• Top 10 Goals  
• FY 2024 Budget Process 
 

Business Items: 
• Adopt resolution once new officers are elected 
• Public Hearing on Limited Gate Access Rule 
 

 

 

Return to Agenda



GRAND HAVEN MEETING AGENDA MATRIX 
  

 

 

 

 

 

January 2023 

Workshop: 
 1/5 

Presentations 
 

Discussions 
• Update on Resident Survey (Supervisor 

Polizzi)—if needed 
• FY 2024 Budget Draft 
• Townhall style Workshop for Survey Report and 

Further Input with the Residents  
 

 
 

 
 
 

Regular 
Meeting: 

1/19 

Staff Reports 
• District Engineer 
• District Counsel 
• District Manager 

 
Consent Agenda Items 

• Meeting Minutes 
o 12/1/2022 Regular Meeting 

• Unaudited Financials (November 2022) 
• Unaudited Financials (December 2022) 

 
Business Items 

• Update on Resident Survey (Supervisor 
Polizzi)—if needed 

 
Discussions 
 

 

 

Return to Agenda



GRAND HAVEN MEETING AGENDA MATRIX 
  

 

 

F
ebruary 2023 

Workshop: 
 2/2 

Presentations 
 
• 10 Year Plan Presentation and Updates from 

January Workshop/Town Hall meeting 
 

Discussions 
• FY 2024 Budget--continued 

 

 
 
• Add comments from residents from January workshop to the 10 year 

plan that the Board paused in Spring, 2022 
 
 
 

• John Lucansky to provide wish list for Tiki Hut (9/15 Board Meeting 
minutes; lines 48-51) 
 

Regular 
Meeting: 

2/16 

Staff Reports 
• District Engineer 
• District Counsel 
• District Manager 
 

Consent Agenda Items 
• Meeting Minutes 

o 1/5/2023Workshop 
o 1/19/2023 Regular Meeting 

• Unaudited Financials (January 2023) 
 

Business Items 
 
Discussions 

• FY 2024 Budget--continued 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• John Lucansky to provide wish list for Tiki Hut (9/15 Board Meeting 
minutes; lines 48-51) 

Return to Agenda



GRAND HAVEN MEETING AGENDA MATRIX 
  

U
nscheduled Item

s 

 
 

Future Workshop Issues: 
 

• Parking Lot discussion 
 
 

• Solar Evaluation 
 
 

• Post Order Changes 
 

• Discussion with D.E. to draft SOW for study and 
report for repair/replacing stormwater 
infrastructure based on observations and 
concerns 
 

• Solitude’s Annual Report (once per year) 
 

• Communication Needs: Follow-up from 
1/20/2022 Regular Board Meeting & 9/2/2022 
and 10/6/2022 Workshops 

o Continued review of communication 
matrix 

o Continued review of prior board 
discussion & supervisor comments sent 
to DM 

o Website upgrades 
 

Future Meeting Issues: 
 

• Limited Access of Roads Public Hearing 
 

• Approval of Debris Removal contract 

 
 

• After receipt of resident survey and John Lucansky’s parking survey—
possibly March/April 
 

• OM has collected information in past on this issue. 
 
 

• In conjunction with limited gate access rule 
 

• SOW required as this is a very broad subject matter 
(check with DE before scheduling on Matrix) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• DC to advise on date 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Return to Agenda



GRAND HAVEN MEETING AGENDA MATRIX 
  

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S TOP 10 BUSINESS GOALS 

 
NOTES 

1. Board Accountability, Code of Conduct, Meeting Efficiency Continue to work on Board’s roles and responsibilities, meeting efficiency 
2. Staffing Levels for Future Needs, Job Descriptions-Field Workers Should be addressed in 2023 
3. Budget, Debt and Assessments Completed (August 2022) 
4. Improve Communications Established townhall style meetings; increased E-blasts; additional information 

added to District’s website.   
5. 2–5-year Capital Planning 10-year Long Term Capital Plan scheduled to be completed Spring 2023 
6. Health, Safety and Security of Grand Haven Residents A work in progress, Board continues discussions Summer and Fall, 2022 
7. External District Resources, Consultants, Intergovernmental Relations City/County Relations, Enforcement Agencies, Chairman, DM, Ops. Mgr. 
8. Stormwater/Pond Management Completed (June, 2022)  
9. Other Funding Sources, Grants Grant Writing Consultant has been discussed, no further action at this time 
10. Update Technology / Access Control, Resident Directory, CRM Website upgrades, project management, gate cell access 

 

Return to Agenda



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 7 



Date of Action 
Item 

Action Item Status 

   
12/2/2021 Place parking lot expansion plans on CDD 

website and provide copy to resident Bob 
Badger 

3/28: Confirmed with DE that 
Board has not approved final 
plan that includes addt’l ADA 
compliance parking. 

   
4/7/2022 Mac to provide Board with general 

comparative salary rates in Flagler and St. 
Johns County (including health care) for 
comparison with GHCDD employees by end 
of calendar year 

7/21: Mac indicated he would 
work on getting this to Board 
prior to the end of the year as 
originally targeted. 8/30: Flagler 
County info obtained; waiting on 
Palm Coast information. 

   
6/16/2022 DM is to work with OM regarding resident’s 

tree replanting issue 
9/15: Done 

   
7/21/2022 DM and OM to provide Board with status 

report from Louise (based on her June 
email) on project status and YTD dollars 
spent on each project. 
 

10/12: List emailed to Board 

   
9/1/2022 DM to work with web hosting company and 

look into alternatives with respect to issues 
raised during workshop. DM working with 
Supervisor Flanagan on this issue. 

9/15: Underway 

   
9/15/2022 District Manager to email out “raw data” 

from survey (sent to him by Supervisor 
Polizzi) to Board members and have them 
indicate back to District Manager the type of 
reports wanted. 
 

10/6: Discussed and decided at 
workshop. 

   
10/6/2022 DM to begin a Post-Hurricane review and 

report back to board on recommendations s 
10/7: Underway 

   
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

   
3/17/2022 & 

8/18/2022 
OM to report to Board on approximate 
amount of money left expected to be left 
over on capital projects for current FY 

9/15: Done 

   

Return to Agenda



3/17/2022 OM to report back to Board how many 
street light poles are in poor condition 

10/12: OM has list—will be 
included in OM’s monthly report 

   
5/5/2022 OM staff to work with VCIO to address 

concerns raised during workshop and to 
identify immediate concerns that need to 
be rectified 

6/9: Underway 

   
5/5/2022 & 
8/18/2022 

OM to look into possibility of lighting for 
basketball court at Village Center 

10/12: Proposal received—OM 
will report to Board 

   
6/2/2022 & 
9/15/2022 

OM is to check on signage for bikes on the 
Esplanade 

9/15: OM to work with DC now 
that rule has been adopted. 
10/7: DC to provide language to 
Board at 11/3 meeting 

   
6/2/2022 OM is to set up a FPL energy audit for all 

structures in community including 
pumphouse. 

6/9: To be scheduled 

   
6/16/2022 OM is to work with DM regarding resident’s 

tree replanting issue 
9/15: Done 

   
6/16/2022 OM to review walking path issue in Wild 

Oaks 
9/7: Paths have been reviewed. 
Concrete borders need 
replacement. 

   
6/16/2022 OM to speak with John Lucansky for his 

observations regarding amenity use of 
parking lot/parking on street 

9/15: Board told John to pause 
this issue until February, 2023 

   
7/21/2022 OM and DM to provide Board with status 

report from Louise (based on her June 
email) on project status and YTD dollars 
spent on each project. 

10/12: List emailed to Board 

   
8/18/2022 OM to contact Solitude and attempt to get 

the pond report soon 
9/22: Preliminary report—
pending additional information 

   
9/1/2022  OM is to get with DC to change wording on 

document new residents sign regarding 
receiving a copy of the rules 

9/7 Document sent to Scott Clark 
for review 

   
9/1/2022 OM to work with Chair on E-Blast 

communicating about leaf issues 
9/5: Underway 

   

Return to Agenda



9/1/2022 OM and Office Manager to communicate 
with VCIO with respect to what Board is 
looking for with regards to improvements in 
business technology over the next three 
years, as well as deliverables in functional 
areas. 

 

   
9/15/2022 OM to work with amenity manager on wish 

list for improvements to Tiki Hut (with 
estimate of costs) 

 

   
9/15/2022 OM to walk Waterside Parkway with DE to 

determine if repaving items in 2023 FY 
Budget need to be reprioritized 

 

   
9/15/2022  OM to speak with DE regarding his report 

on overall stormwater system review and 
expected date report will be complete 

10/20: Placed on upcoming 
workshop item list 

   
10/20/2022 OM to work with Amenity Manager with 

respect to DBPR inspection report 
 

   
10/20/2022 OM to work with Amenity Manager with 

respect to dogs in Village Center 
 

   
10/20/2022 OM to work with DE with respect to 

retaining wall issue in the Crossings 
 

   
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

   
10/20/2022 DE to work with OM with respect to 

retaining wall issue in the Crossings 
 

   
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

   
4/21/2022 Vice Chair Foley to meet with DM and DC to 

address DC legal fees 
11/3: Agenda item 

   
7/21/2022 Chair Howden to speak with OM to look 

at possibility of aeration for Pond #11 
9/15: Board approved funding 

   
7/21/2022 Chair Howden to speak with John 

Lucansky regarding flooding issues near 
Bocce Ball courts 

8/11: OM is evaluating the 
drainage. 

   

Return to Agenda



9/1/2022 Chair to check with DC regarding a policy on 
leaves on the street  

Done 

   
9/1/2022 Chair to work with OM on E-Blast 

communicating about leaf issues 
9/5: Underway 

   
9/15/2022 Supervisor Polizzi to send DM “raw data” 

from survey.  
 

   
9/15/2022 Supervisors are to provide DC with feedback 

on proposed limited access rule 
Completed 

   
9/15/2022 Supervisors are to provide DC with feedback 

on issues they want addressed with respect 
to the protection of District employees from  
verbal abuse and abuse on social media 
sites 

9/21: Comments should have 
been sent by this date. 

   
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

   
8/18/2022 DC to begin rule making for limited public 

access to the community 
9/15: First draft presented to 
Board; 12/1: PH Date 

   
9/1/2022 DC To answer question on District liability 

when resident fails to provide an email 
address for E-Blasts 

9/15: Done 

   
9/1/2022 DC to answer question about ADA concerns 

if the website provided an “open ticket” 
option. 

9/15: Done 

   
9/15/2022 DC to work with OM on signage for bikes on 

the Esplanade 
10/7: To provide language to 
Board during 11/3 meeting. 

   
10/20/2022 DC to continue work on verbal abuse of 

employee issue 
 

 

Return to Agenda



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 8 



MINUTES OF MEETING 1 

GRAND HAVEN 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 

 The Workshop Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Grand Haven Community Development 4 
District was held on Thursday, October 6, 2022 at 9:03 a.m. in the Grand Haven Room, at the Grand Haven 5 
Village Center, 2001 Waterside Parkway, Palm Coast, Florida 32137. 6 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS – Call to Order/Roll Call 7 

Mr. McInnes called the meeting to order and conducted roll call. 8 

Present and constituting a quorum were:  9 

Chip Howden Board Supervisor, Chairman 10 
Kevin Foley Board Supervisor, Vice Chairman 11 
Dr. Merrill Stass-Isern (via phone) Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 12 
Michael Flanagan Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 13 
John Polizzi Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 14 

Also present were: 15 

David McInnes District Manager, DPFG Management & Consulting 16 
Barry Kloptosky CDD Operations Manager 17 

The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the October 6, 2022 Grand Haven CDD 18 
Board of Supervisors Workshop Meeting. 19 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS – Pledge of Allegiance 20 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 21 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS – Discussion Items  22 

A. Draft Rule Regarding Gate Limited Access – Under Separate Cover 23 

As the District Counsel was unable to attend this meeting, the Board proceeded with the next 24 
discussion item. 25 

B. Update from Operations Manager Regarding Preparations for Hurricane Ian & Post Storm Actions 26 
& Damage Assessment 27 

Mr. Kloptosky gave an overview of the preparations and effects of the hurricane, providing a 28 
timeline of communications and when power and internet came back up for the amenity facilities. 29 
Mr. Kloptosky noted that internet had been restored later for Creekside, so e-blasts could not be 30 
sent out until Monday. Mr. Kloptosky added that they had been in contact throughout the storm 31 
with the District’s debris removal vendor, and that an initial assessment of damages had been 32 
conducted by them on Monday, with various stages of debris removal beginning in the following 33 
days. Fallen trees at the croquet courts at Creekside, damaged fences, and a toppled mail kiosk were 34 
also observed, and these were to be addressed in-house. 35 

Question from the Board regarding action plans in preparing for future storms were addressed, and 36 
comments were made from Supervisors suggesting that improvements could be made in both levels 37 
of communication and the extent of redundancies in place. Supervisors Foley and Howden 38 
suggested that details on debris cleanup responsibility could have been better communicated to 39 
residents. In response to a Supervisor question, Mr. Kloptosky stated that he could look into having 40 
another backup generator for critical systems in case of another main generator failure. Mr. 41 
Kloptosky additionally recalled the process with FEMA reimbursement following Hurricane 42 
Matthew, noting work that had been done previously with District Counsel and specific budget 43 

Return to AgendaReturn to Agenda



Grand Haven CDD October 6, 2022 

Workshop Meeting Page 2 of 3 

 
coding for disaster cleanup. Additional suggestions were made by the Board for more synergy in 44 
preparations and mass communication with peer organizations such as the master association, as 45 
well as the coordination of a formalized post-mortem review with staff for items that could be 46 
improved or more organized. A request was made for the Operations Manager to provide insight 47 
on what could be done prior to storms to reduce efforts that staff needed to undertake for their list 48 
of preparations. 49 

C. Exhibit 1: Update on Resident Survey – Supervisor Polizzi 50 

Mr. Polizzi provided an update on the survey. He stated that there 510 paper surveys were sent in, 51 
and 272 online surveys were completed, for a total of 782 surveys. He noted that 370 surveys were 52 
sent through the office and mentioned that 1,069 comments had been submitted. He stated that 53 
online responders to the survey reported satisfaction with the current amenities and indicated that 54 
a number of the comments received were pertaining to access to the community. He noted that 90% 55 
of the online survey responders felt the Board needed to improve on communication and that 85% 56 
of the online survey responders approved of the CDD’s landscaping. 57 

Discussion ensued regarding what data would be most valuable, breaking out data based on each 58 
resident’s age and duration living in Grand Haven, eliminating some demographic questions which 59 
may be unnecessary, and whether to have Snap Survey input the comments that were received. In 60 
response to a Supervisor question, Mr. Polizzi explained the format of the data to be received, 61 
comparing it to an Excel database. 62 

(The Board recessed the meeting at 11:10 a.m., and reconvened the meeting at 11:21 a.m.) 63 

(Dr. Merrill left the meeting at 11:21 a.m.) 64 

1. Reporting Needs – To Be Distributed 65 

The majority of the Board spoke in favor of reports documenting the comments associated 66 
with “Yes” answers broken out from documented comments associated with “No” answers 67 
for the remodel, as well as for security, facilities expansion, and conveyance paths. Mr. 68 
Polizzi noted that Snap Survey could provide chart visualizations of the survey data, as 69 
well as detailed summary reports with comments included, and that he could request a 70 
quote from them in the immediate term. Mr. Polizzi additionally acknowledged that the 71 
overall results could change, noting the percentage of completed surveys received thus far 72 
and the time it took for Snap Survey to enter data into their system from surveys returned 73 
via mail. The Board requested for slices of data to be cut based on responses from the 41-74 
65 and 66-80 age groups, as well as 1-5 and 6-15 years of residence. 75 

D. Communication Needs: Follow-Up from 01-20-22 Regular Board Meeting & 09-02-22 Workshop 76 

1. Exhibit 2: Continued Review of Communication Matrix 77 

2. Exhibit 3: Continued Review of Prior Board Discussion & Supervisor Comments Sent to 78 
DM 79 

3. Exhibit 4: Discussion of Potential Website Additions 80 

Mr. McInnes noted that a number of website examples from other CDDs and respective 81 
web host vendors had been provided for the Board’s review. The Board expressed support 82 
for focusing on changes that could be made to the CDD website, and discussion ensued 83 
regarding narrowing down the number of sites to review and pull features from. The Board 84 
discussed whether they could work with Vesta on the website, with comments made asking 85 
whether they could look into potentially lifting from the design of the Grand Haven site 86 
that Vesta had, and merging this design with the CDD website’s contents. Following 87 
further discussion on ownership rights and website functionality needs, the Board agreed 88 

Return to AgendaReturn to Agenda



Grand Haven CDD October 6, 2022 

Workshop Meeting Page 3 of 3 

to send their suggestions for site additions and features to the District Manager, who would 89 
then work with Supervisor Flanagan to narrow down the number of companies to a 90 
maximum of three for the Board’s future consideration. The Board agreed to have the 91 
involvement of the CDD’s current web host vendor, Campus Suite, as part of future website 92 
discussions. 93 

Following discussion, Mr. Howden noted that Dr. Merrill had been particularly concerned 94 
about the communication needs, and suggested that other aspects of communications issues 95 
could be discussed at a later point when the whole Board could be present to participate. 96 
The Board proceeded with the next Order of Business. 97 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Next Meeting Quorum Check: October 20, 9:00 AM 98 

• Quorum Check99 

Mr. Foley, Mr. Flanagan, and Mr. Howden stated that they would be in attendance at the next100 
meeting scheduled for October 20, which would fulfill a quorum. Mr. Polizzi stated that he would101 
be in attendance remotely. Dr. Merrill was not present for the quorum check.102 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Action Items Review 103 

Mr. McInnes provided the list of action items as discussed in the meeting, being as follows: 104 

• The District Manager will work on a post-storm review, with a debriefing report on improvements105 
that could be made going forward in responses to similar natural disasters.106 

• The District Manager will work with Mr. Flanagan on website enhancements.107 

Additional Supervisor comments were heard regarding the process for getting laptops and tablets108 
for the Board.109 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Adjournment 110 

The Board adjourned the meeting, at 1:00 p.m., for the Grand Haven Community Development 111 
District. 112 

*Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered113 
at the meeting is advised that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, 114 
including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 115 

Meeting minutes were approved at a meeting by vote of the Board of Supervisors at a publicly noticed 116 
meeting held on November 3, 2022. 117 

118 

Signature Signature 

Printed Name Printed Name 

Title: □ Secretary □ Assistant Secretary Title: □ Chairman □ Vice Chairman 119 

Return to AgendaReturn to Agenda



EXHIBIT 9 



MINUTES OF MEETING 1 

GRAND HAVEN 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 

 The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Grand Haven Community Development 4 
District was held on Thursday, October 20, 2022 at 9:02 a.m. in the Grand Haven Room, at the Grand 5 
Haven Village Center, 2001 Waterside Parkway, Palm Coast, Florida 32137. 6 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS – Call to Order/Roll Call 7 

Mr. McInnes called the meeting to order and conducted roll call. 8 

Present and constituting a quorum were:  9 

Chip Howden Board Supervisor, Chairman 10 
Kevin Foley Board Supervisor, Vice Chairman 11 
Michael Flanagan Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 12 
John Polizzi (via phone) Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 13 
Dr. Merrill Stass-Isern (via phone, Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 14 
joined in progress) 15 

Also present were: 16 

David McInnes District Manager, DPFG Management & Consulting 17 
Scott Smith Vesta 18 
Scott Clark District Counsel, Clark & Albaugh, LLP 19 
David Sowell District Engineer  20 
Barry Kloptosky CDD Operations Manager 21 
Vanessa Stepniak CDD Office Manager 22 
John Lucansky Amenity Manager, Vesta Property Services 23 
Donald Blinn Resident 24 
Lucie Lackanee Resident  25 
Mary Beth Swanson Resident 26 

The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the October 20, 2022 Grand Haven 27 
CDD Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting. Audio for this meeting is available upon public records 28 
request. 29 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS – Pledge of Allegiance 30 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.  31 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS – Audience Comments – (for non-agenda items - limited to 3 minutes 32 
per individual) 33 

Mr. Blinn expressed concerns regarding the condition of the pond, particularly in regards to floating 34 
debris in the pond. A Supervisor indicated that this matter would be addressed during Mr. 35 
Kloptosky’s presentation.  36 

(Dr. Merrill joined the meeting via Zoom at 9:08 a.m.) 37 

Ms. Lackanee requested a key for a locker in the ladies’ room, noting that she had been given a key 38 
in the past. Mr. Kloptosky explained that the lockers were originally intended to be used by all 39 
residents and indicated that some lockers had been removed and replaced with benches due to a 40 
lack of use. Mr. Howden indicated that he would like for this matter to be included on a future 41 
agenda. 42 

Ms. Swanson inquired about cleanup of wetland debris, citing fire hazard and flooding concerns. 43 
She suggested looking into regrading this area to help alleviate a water issue. Mr. Kloptosky noted 44 

Return to Agenda



Grand Haven CDD October 20, 2022 
Regular Meeting Page 2 of 8 
 

that the wetland areas were strictly monitored and enforced by St. Johns River Water Management. 45 
Ms. Stepniak confirmed that the area in question was a wetland area.  46 

Mr. McInnes briefly circled back to the matter of lockers, noting that any changes to the locker 47 
policy would require a rule change.  48 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Staff Reports 49 

A. Exhibit 1: Amenity Manager: John Lucansky 50 

Mr. Lucansky informed the Board that violations found by a Health Inspection report had been 51 
rectified within 2 days of the inspection. He stated that the dogs on property were confirmed by 52 
their owners to be service animals, noting that asking for certificates or requesting that the dog wear 53 
a vest was not permitted.  54 

Mr. Foley expressed concerns regarding reports from the Department of Business and Professional 55 
Regulation for the café. He expressed dissatisfation with the lack of enforcement of the dog policy, 56 
to which Dr. Merrill indicated agreement.  57 

In response to a Supervisor question, Mr. Lucansky stated that there was nothing additional the 58 
CDD needed to do in order to reduce violations. Mr. Flanagan commented that the doors of the 59 
café could be difficult to open. Mr. Kloptosky explained that this was caused by the suction of the 60 
air and indicated that the doors would be adjusted to correct this.  61 

Mr. Flanagan asked if there was enough money in the Contingency Fund for disaster recovery to 62 
cover overtime for staff members. Mr. Lucansky indicated that he did not believe overtime would 63 
be necessary. Mr. Flanagan additionally requested that Mr. Lucansky refrain from including items 64 
in his report that were consistently unchanged. Mr. Lucansky explained that these items were 65 
included to ensure that these were still checked on a weekly basis.  66 

Mr. Polizzi stressed the importance of ensuring high quality standards at the café and advised 67 
increased diligence in regards to enforcing the rules of the café, particularly pertaining to dogs. He 68 
suggested sending out quarterly communications to residents to remind them of the café rules.  69 

Mr. Howden asked Mr. Kloptosky to work with Mr. Lucansky on the inspection and dog issues and 70 
bring back their changes to the Board.  71 

B. District Engineer: David Sowell 72 

1. Exhibit 2: Discussion of North Drainage Map 73 

Mr. Sowell provided an overview of the North Drainage Map. He noted that he was unable 74 
to find As Built design plans for Grand Haven North but indicated that the structures were 75 
functioning as designed.  76 

In response to a Supervisor question, Mr. Sowell clarified that Pond 25 was isolated from 77 
Wetland P and all other ponds through its control structure. He stated that he did not believe 78 
the homes around this area were in jeopardy.  79 

Dr. Merrill expressed concerns regarding water levels of Wetland P and the lack of multiple 80 
egresses. Mr. Sowell suggested pumping water into an inlet to lower the water levels. Mr. 81 
Clark advised contacting St. John’s River Water Management to obtain permission to pump 82 
the water.  83 

Mr. Flanagan asked if the District had total responsibility for taking control of what was 84 
causing the issues with the ponds of Wild Oaks and the wetlands in these areas. Mr. Clark 85 
indicated that this was a shared responsibility. Mr. Flanagan asked how the District could 86 
hold other entities responsible for their share of responsibility. Mr. Clark stated that 87 
consultants could be sent to speak with the entities and indicated that letters could be sent 88 

Return to Agenda



Grand Haven CDD October 20, 2022 
Regular Meeting Page 3 of 8 
 

as well, if the latter was unsuccessful. A Supervisor recalled that the Board had discussed 89 
putting the infrastructure process on a future Workshop agenda.  90 

Mr. Flanagan inquired as to whether there were enough funds allocated in the budget to 91 
address overflows and to ensure the barriers were working correctly. Mr. Kloptosky stated 92 
that the District had enough money in the budget to address immediate concerns but 93 
indicated that a more involved discussion regarding the financing could be held at a 94 
Workshop meeting. Following discussion, the Board reached a consensus to revisit this 95 
matter at a Workshop meeting.  96 

In response to a Supervisor question, Mr. Sowell confirmed that the plan to enclose 97 
Wetland P had been taken into account in the development plans.  98 

Mr. Sowell advised that the Board consider repairing a retaining wall on 53 West 99 
Waterside, as the wall could jeopardize the foundation of some nearby homes if it was to 100 
fail. He indicated that further investigation of the entire property wall was needed to 101 
determine the full scope of repairs. Mr. Howden stated that he would like for Mr. Kloptosky 102 
and Mr. Sowell to evaluate the wall and report back, to which there were no objections.  103 

Mr. Sowell informed the Board that there were some depressions forming around the 104 
manholes in Wild Oaks. He advised extending the maintenance program into this area and 105 
repairing the manholes. Mr. Kloptosky stated that this would fall under Road Repair and 106 
noted that 6 manholes had already been repaired.  107 

Mr. Sowell additionally brought up the Road Resurfacing Program. He indicated that 108 
Waterside Pkwy. was not in need of repairs at this time. He stated that it would cost 109 
approximately $250,000.00 to repave Waterside Pkwy. from the Village Center to the south 110 
entrance of the community. Mr. Foley commented on disturbed asphalt and concrete 111 
curbing on Waterside Pkwy. Mr. Sowell explained that the problematic areas would be 112 
repaired but advised that a full repaving was not warranted. Mr. Flanagan noted that sealing 113 
could be a potential option to improve the aesthetics of the road. Mr. Kloptosky indicated 114 
that he would look into this.  115 

(Dr. Merrill left the meeting at 10:32 a.m.) 116 

C. Operations Manager: Barry Kloptosky  117 

1. Exhibit 3: Presentation of Capital Project Plan Tracker 118 

Mr. Howden asked for any questions on the tracker. In response to a Supervisor question, 119 
Mr. Kloptosky stated that this was the last tracker for Fiscal Year 2022 but acknowledged 120 
that there was a small number of outstanding items that were not currently on the tracker.  121 

2. Exhibit 4: Monthly Report 122 

Mr. Kloptosky informed the Board that the sidewalk replacement project was now in 123 
progress. He stated that he did believe the treatment for Pond 43 was working and brought 124 
up a proposal to harvest the pond in the amount of $43,500.00. He indicated that he was 125 
dissatisfied with Solitude’s service and stated that he had received a proposal for a different 126 
vendor to take over treatments for all of the District’s ponds in the amount of $8,450.00 127 
per month. Following discussion, the Board reached a consensus to direct Mr. Kloptosky 128 
to obtain additional proposal options for aquatic maintenance prior to giving Mr. Clark 129 
authorization to issue a letter of termination to Solitude. Mr. Flanagan requested that Mr. 130 
Kloptosky look into potential discounts with multi-year contracts. Mr. Polizzi noted that 131 
he would like to continue to look into additional solutions for Ditch 10 in the interim.  132 

(Dr. Merrill rejoined the meeting at 10:57 a.m.) 133 

Return to Agenda



Grand Haven CDD October 20, 2022 
Regular Meeting Page 4 of 8 
 

Mr. Kloptosky stated that aeration installation for Pond 24 and Pond 11 would move 134 
forward after the conduit was installed. He discussed an application issue pertaining to the 135 
installation of a meter by Pond 37. Ms. Stepniak indicated that this was in the process of 136 
being resolved and stated that she would call the individual working on this matter after 137 
the meeting.  138 

In response to a question from Mr. Flanagan, Mr. Kloptosky indicated that some of the 139 
items on the bathroom punch list had been completed. Mr. Flanagan additionally asked if 140 
any feedback had been received from the guards. Ms. Stepniak stated that positive feedback 141 
had been received. 142 

Mr. Kloptosky provided the Board with an update regarding the storm cleanup process. He 143 
relayed negative feedback from residents regarding the speed of the cleanup but indicated 144 
that he disagreed with the feedback and that he felt the cleanup had occurred in an efficient 145 
manner. He commented positively on the work performed by the cleanup company. He 146 
additionally explained that the City had not helped the District with the cleanup, as they 147 
had with prior storms. Mr. Foley commented that he felt more communication with 148 
residents was needed.  149 

Mr. Clark provided background information on past agreements in 2016 and 2017 with the 150 
City regarding storm cleanup and confirmed that the City had been unwilling to provide 151 
supplemental cleanup for Hurricane Ian. He relayed that the City Attorney had stated that 152 
the City was not legally obligated to pick up debris and that it would not be feasible for the 153 
City to do so.  154 

Mr. Howden stated that he had reached out to the Mayor’s Office, the City Manager’s 155 
office, and Councilman Klufas regarding storm pickup but had not received a response. He 156 
informed the audience and Board members that the City was not providing the same 157 
garbage solid waste pickup services as was provided to those living outside the District, 158 
despite each household within the District paying roughly $360 per year for this service. 159 
He stated that the City had removed after-storm cleanup from their contract with Waste 160 
Pro.  Mr. Howden additionally discussed an issue of some residents taking advantage of 161 
storm cleanup. Mr. Polizzi indicated that he thought this may be due to a misunderstanding 162 
as to what was considered the residents’ responsibility and how much the City would pick 163 
up.  164 

Mr. Foley pointed out that dates had not been included on the Operations Manager report 165 
and reiterated that he would like for this to be included moving forward.  166 

In response to a Supervisor question, Mr. Kloptosky stated that there was still an open 167 
position for a Field Maintenance Worker 2 and a Field Supervisor. Mr. Howden noted that 168 
Mr. McInnes was in the process of pursuing potential options internally with DPFG.  169 

(The Board recessed the meeting at 11:51 a.m. and reconvened at 12:06 p.m.) 170 

Following the recess, Mr. Flanagan requested that the Meeting Minutes reflect Mr. Clark 171 
and Mr. Howden’s statements regarding the City’s actions in detail.  172 

D. Exhibit 5: District Counsel: Scott Clark 173 

Mr. Clark stated that the steps for FEMA reimbursement would be initiated, noting that it appeared 174 
that the District would received 100% reimbursement for the debris potion.  175 

Mr. Howden requested to move up the discussions on Employee Protection from Verbal Abuse & 176 
Abuse on Social Media Sites and the Draft Gate Limited Access Rule.  177 

E. Employee Protection from Verbal Abuse & Abuse on Social Media Sites 178 

Return to Agenda



Grand Haven CDD October 20, 2022 
Regular Meeting Page 5 of 8 
 

This item, originally Item B under the Sixth Order of Business, Discussion Items, was 179 
presented out of order.  180 

Mr. Clark advised amending the rules to create protections against abuse for staff. He explained 181 
that abuse occurring on social media would be outside the District’s control. The Board reached a 182 
consensus to allow Mr. Clark to speak with the employees and bring back potential rule changes.  183 

F. Draft Gate Limited Access Rule 184 

This item, originally Item C under the Sixth Order of Business, Discussion Items, was 185 
presented out of order.  186 

Mr. Clark asked if the Board would like to move forward with this rule and inquired as to how 187 
this would impact the Crossings and Wild Oaks. Mr. Flanagan suggested a change in 188 
infrastructure to allow the guards visibility and pointed out that penalty of having to use the guard 189 
side could not be enforced at the Crossings or Wild Oaks. Mr. Clark noted that the Board could 190 
adopt the rule and determine how to implement it as a second step. In response to a Supervisor 191 
question, Mr. Clark clarified that the verbiage would need to be voted on at a Public Hearing.  192 

On a MOTION by Mr. Foley, SECONDED by Mr. Flanagan, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board authorized 193 
staff to notice the Gate Limited Access Rule for Public Hearing for the Grand Haven Community 194 
Development District. 195 

G. District Manager: David McInnes 196 

Mr. Howden requested to move up the Resident Incident discussion.  197 

1. Discussion of Resident Incident – To Be Distributed  198 

This item, originally Item G3 under the Fourth Order of Business, Staff Reports, 199 
was presented out of order.  200 

Mr. McInnes reviewed a recent incident in which a resident used abusive language 201 
against a Vesta employee at the Creekside Fitness Center. He noted that a memo detailing 202 
the incident was public record and that Supervisors were permitted to view the footage at 203 
the Creekside office. He advised issuing a written warning to the resident. Mr. Howden 204 
recommended for a written warning to be sent to the resident from the District Manager 205 
advising of a 60-day warning of the first offense. Mr. Foley suggested a 2-week 206 
suspension for the resident. Mr. Clark advised against this suggestion, as this could 207 
hinder enforceability. The majority of the Board agreed to Mr. Howden’s 208 
recommendation of a 60-day warning.  209 

(Dr. Merrill left the meeting at 12:58 p.m.) 210 

2. Exhibit 6: Meeting Matrix 211 

Mr. Foley requested to add a discussion on the 10-year plan to the January or February 212 
Workshop Meeting. Mr. Foley additionally suggested adding a Town Hall Meeting 213 
regarding the survey to the January Workshop.   214 

3. Exhibit 7: Action Item Report 215 

Mr. Howden asked for any questions on the Action Item Report, to which there were 216 
none.  217 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Consent Agenda Items 218 

A. Exhibit 8: Consideration for Acceptance – The September 2022 Unaudited Financial Report 219 

Return to Agenda



Grand Haven CDD October 20, 2022 
Regular Meeting Page 6 of 8 
 

B. Exhibit 9: Consideration for Approval – The Minutes of the Board of Supervisors Workshop 220 
Meeting Held September 1, 2022 221 

C. Exhibit 10: Consideration for Approval – The Minutes of the Board of Supervisors Regular 222 
Meeting Held September 15, 2022 223 

On a MOTION by Mr. Foley, SECONDED by Mr. Flanagan, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 224 
all items on the Consent Agenda for the Grand Haven Community Development District. 225 

 Following the motion, Mr. McInnes requested to move up Exhibit 11 and Exhibit 12.  226 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Business Items 227 

A. Exhibit 11: Consideration of VerdeGo Annual Price Increase 228 

This item, originally Item B under the Sixth Order of Business, Business Items, was 229 
presented out of order.  230 

Mr. McInnes explained that the District had budgeted for an 5% rate increase for landscape 231 
maintenance but VerdeGo had requested an increase of 9%. He explained that the cost of 232 
chemicals was the driving force of the increase and recommended that the Board approve the 233 
increase. Mr. Kloptosky indicated that he agreed with Mr. McInnes’ recommendation.  234 

Mr. Foley advised that the Board look into the District’s expenses and attempt to cut back on 235 
costs. Mr. Flanagan noted that he would like for the VerdeGo’s rates to decrease if the market 236 
went down in cost.  237 

On a MOTION by Mr. Flanagan, SECONDED by Mr. Foley, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 238 
the VerdeGo Annual Price Increase for the Grand Haven Community Development District. 239 

B. Exhibit 12: Consideration of Precision Land Grading Price Increase 240 

This item, originally Item C under the Sixth Order of Business, Business Items, was 241 
presented out of order.  242 

Mr. McInnes explained that the cost of chemicals was the driving force for Precision Land 243 
Grading as well. He noted that this was a 3% higher than what had been budgeted for FY 2023 244 
and recommended that the Board approve the increase. Mr. Kloptosky noted that he had spoken 245 
with the contractor and indicated that he felt this was a fair cost. 246 

On a MOTION by Mr. Flanagan, SECONDED by Mr. Foley, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 247 
the Precision Land Grading Price Increase for the Grand Haven Community Development District. 248 

C. Cellphone Access at Gates 249 

This item, originally Item A under the Sixth Order of Business, Discussion Items, was 250 
presented out of order.  251 

Mr. Howden spoke against allowing cell phone access at the gates due to security concerns. He 252 
additionally suggested that the Board consider splitting vendor access. Other Supervisors voiced 253 
their support of allowing cell phone access at the gates. In response to a Supervisor question, Ms. 254 
Stepniak confirmed that the current system only allowed one phone number per address at this 255 
time but indicated that this could change in the future. She recommended waiting for the rollout 256 
of the resident web portal to allow residents to input their cell phone numbers themselves, should 257 
the Board choose to move forward with this change.  258 

(Mr. Polizzi left the meeting at 1:45 p.m.) 259 

Return to Agenda



Grand Haven CDD October 20, 2022 
Regular Meeting Page 7 of 8 
 

Mr. Flanagan made a motion to move forward with cell phone access at the gates, which was 260 
seconded by Mr. Foley. Mr. Howden asked for any comments from the audience. An audience 261 
member expressed concerns regarding the limit of one phone number per household. Ms. 262 
Swanson agreed that she would like for multiple cell phones to be able to be used and spoke in 263 
favor of cell phone access for the gates.  264 

On a MOTION by Mr. Flanagan, SECONDED by Mr. Foley, with Mr. Flanagan and Mr. Foley, voting 265 
“AYE” and Mr. Howden voting “NAY”, the Board approved moving forward with Cell Phone Access at 266 
the Gates for the Grand Haven Community Development District. 267 

D. Update on Resident Survey – Supervisor Polizzi 268 

1. Review of Reports 269 

This item was tabled, as Mr. Polizzi had left the meeting.  270 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Discussion Items 271 

The items originally under this Order of Business were discussed under the Fourth Order of 272 
Business, Staff Reports, and the Fifth Order of Business, Business Items.  273 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Supervisors Requests 274 

Mr. Foley requested for legal costs to be discussed at the next meeting, if possible. There were no 275 
objections to this request.  276 

Mr. Flanagan requested to have the incident report review completed within a week after the 277 
incidents were brought to District Management’s attention. Mr. Howden expressed that he did not 278 
think this would be appropriate. Mr. McInnes reviewed the process of documenting incidents and 279 
indicated that he would be hesitant to commit to the 1-week turnaround time that was requested. 280 
He stated that he could notify the Board of incidents and update the Board on the incidents as part 281 
of his report, as was done for this meeting. Mr. Flanagan spoke in favor of this process.  282 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Action Item Summary 283 

Mr. McInnes reviewed the Action Item Summary.   284 

A. The Operations Manager will work with the Amenity Manager with respect to correction on the 285 
DBPR inspection and to address the issue of pets in the Village Center.  286 

B. The District Engineer will work with the Operations Manager on the retaining wall issue in the 287 
Crossings.  288 

C. District Counsel will continue to work on the verbal abuse issue.  289 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Next Meeting Quorum Check: November 3rd, 9:00 a.m.  290 

• Quorum Check 291 

All Board members, with the exception of Dr. Merrill and Mr. Polizzi, confirmed that they would 292 
be present for the meeting, which would establish a quorum.  293 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Adjournment 294 

Mr. McInnes asked for final questions, comments, or corrections before requesting a motion to 295 
adjourn the meeting. There being none, Mr. Foley made a motion to adjourn the meeting. 296 

On a MOTION by Mr. Foley, SECONDED by Mr. Flanagan, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board adjourned 297 
the meeting, at 2:10 p.m., for the Grand Haven Community Development District. 298 

Return to Agenda



Grand Haven CDD October 20, 2022 
Regular Meeting Page 8 of 8 

*Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered 299 
at the meeting is advised that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, 300 
including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 301 

Meeting minutes were approved at a meeting by vote of the Board of Supervisors at a publicly noticed 302 
meeting held on November 3, 2022. 303 

304 

305 

Signature Signature 

Printed Name Printed Name 

Title: □ Secretary □ Assistant Secretary Title: □ Chairman □ Vice Chairman 306 

Return to Agenda



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 10 



Return to Agenda



Legal Hours
Reviews Mgmt  Super Other CDD
Research Time Time Drafting Coresp. Meeting Total

July. 21 11 1.8 0.4 0.5 5.9 8.4 28 Savings from 3 hour meeting plus 2 hours travel is 39 hours or 36% of total meeting time.

August 7.1 13 3.5 12.1 1.5 8.5 45.7 Savings from 10% reduction in Mgmt & Super is 8.5 hours

September 11.4 9.9 2.8 11.1 1 8.1 44.3 $13.5m

October 8.3 4 0.4 8.4 3.4 15 39.5 Looks like this still has a double counting of meeting time.  I adj. out 7.5.  Confirm with SC.

November 4.3 10.8 0 0.6 2.4 7.7 25.8

December 4.4 0.7 0 3.6 1.6 7.2 17.5

January. 22 12.4 2.8 0.7 2.8 1.4 8.4 28.5

February 21.8 3.1 1.3 8.9 1.1 8.4 44.6

March 9.2 2.7 2.8 13.9 0.7 6.2 35.5

April  9.6 5 0.4 2.1 2.5 6.3 25.9

May 9.3 5.5 0.8 0.6 2.8 8.4 27.4 Credit for 7.9 hours double counted in Oct. 21

June

July 11.5 7.1 1.9 14 0.7 6.8 42

August 2 3.5 0.2 6.4 2.3 9.6 24

Total 122.3 69.9 15.2 85 27.3 109 428.7

Return to Agenda



Legal Hours
Reviews Mgmt  Super Other CDD
Research Time Time Drafting Coresp. Meeting Total

July. 21 11 1.8 0.4 0.5 5.9 8.4 28

August 7.1 13 3.5 12.1 1.5 8.5 45.7

September 11.4 9.9 2.8 11.1 1 8.1 44.3

October 8.3 4 0.4 8.4 3.4 15 39.5

November 4.3 10.8 0 0.6 2.4 7.7 25.8

December 4.4 0.7 0 3.6 1.6 7.2 17.5

January. 22 12.4 2.8 0.7 2.8 1.4 8.4 28.5

February 21.8 3.1 1.3 8.9 1.1 8.4 44.6

March 9.2 2.7 2.8 13.9 0.7 6.2 35.5

April  9.6 5 0.4 2.1 2.5 6.3 25.9

May 9.3 5.5 0.8 0.6 2.8 8.4 27.4

June

July 11.5 7.1 1.9 14 0.7 6.8 42

Total 120.3 66.4 15 78.6 25 99.4 404.7

Return to Agenda



Possible Alternatives

Actual Hours 99.4 Total Meeting time hours for 12 months July to July (missing June 22)
81.4 Total hours spent with management and supervisors for same 12 months
180.8 Total for those headings

Proposed Hours 63  Meeting time of 3 hours plus 2 hours assumed drive time.  Includes 6 hours plus 2 hours driving for annual meeting day.
73.3 81.4 hours spent with management and supervisors less 10%.  My assumed possible savings.
136.3 Total possible hours to be spent on an annual basis for meetings & calls with mgmt and supervisors

44.5 Difference in actual vs. possible hours

$12.7m Cost save at $285 per hour

Return to Agenda


	Agenda
	Exhibit 1
	Amenity Manager

	Exhibit 2
	Capital Project Plan Tracker

	Exhibit 3
	Monthly Report

	Exhibit 4
	Meeting List

	Exhibit 5
	Litigation

	Exhibit 6
	Meeting Matrix

	Exhibit 7
	Action Item Report

	Exhibit 8
	Workshop Minutes

	Exhibit 9
	Regular Minutes

	Exhibit 10
	District’s Legal Costs




